
 

City of Excelsior 

Planning Commission Meeting 

Minutes 

Wednesday, September 4, 2013 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Vice Chair Duyvejonck called the meeting to order at 7:02 pm. 

2. ROLL CALL 

Present: Duyvejonck, Hannah, Wallace, Busch, and Wilson 

Absent:  Wright, and Craig 

Others:  Braaten, Richards, and Staunton (arrived at 7:20 pm) 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

(a) Planning Commission Meeting of August 6, 2013 

Commissioner Wallace moved, Busch seconded to approve the August 
6, 2013 Planning Commission meeting minutes as presented.  Motion 

Carried 5/0. 

4. PENDING ISSUES/PROJECTS 

 (a) Appoint Liaison to City Council (September 9, 2013) 

 Cindy Busch volunteered to be the Council liaison for the September 9, 
2013 meeting. 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS – (Continued)  

 None     

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

(a) Proposed Ordinance to Amend Article 16, General Performance Standards 
and Article 24, Signs of Appendix E of the Excelsior City Code of 

Ordinances Related to Outdoor Lighting and Signs 

 Richards introduced the topic.  Richards explained that the Commission 
had discussed formula business restrictions and the lighting of signs at 

their previous meeting and staff had been directed to review and revise 
the sign lighting language and bring recommendations to the 

Commission.  This topic was considered a priority for the Commission at 
their previous meeting.  Richards explained the existing language 
regarding signage lighting and materials. 

 Wilson asked if the Commission had had any discussions regarding LED 
signage.  Richards informed Wilson that the ordinance already prohibits 

such signage.  Discussion followed regarding LED signage.   

 Busch inquired about the proposed library signage for the new Hennepin  



Minutes 
Planning Commission Meeting 

September 4, 2013 
Page 2 of 7 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

(a) Proposed Ordinance to Amend Article 16, General Performance Standards 
and Article 24, Signs of Appendix E of the Excelsior City Code of 

Ordinances Related to Outdoor Lighting and Signs – (continued) 

 County Library.  She stated that the approved sign was backlit.  Braaten 

stated that she was correct but the sign only allowed the backlighting of 
the individual letters as indicated in their Conditional Use Permit approval 
for a monument sign.  Discussion followed regarding the ability to keep 

up with the technologies that are being used for signage. 

 The Commission briefly discussed the proposed ordinance language and 

existing signage within the community. 

 Vice Chair Duyvejonck opened the public hearing at 7:17 pm. 

 Hearing no comments from the public Duyvejonck closed the public 

hearing at 7:48 pm. 

 Wallace questioned what sign materials would be allowed.  Richard 

stated that the proposed language would add plastic signs to the 
prohibited material list.  Discussion followed regarding what sign 

materials should be allowed. 

 Hannah asked the Commission what they felt would be the most 
offensive sign in the community in regard to lighting and design.  

Richards stated that the dentist sign along 2nd Street was a good 
example of what the community does not want their signage to look like.  

Discussion followed.   

 Commissioner Wallace moved, Hannah seconded, to recommend the City 
Council approve the proposed outdoor lighting and signage ordinance 

amendment.  Motion carried 5/0. 

7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

(a) Proposed Ordinance to Amend Article 17, General Yard, Lot Area and 
Building Regulations of Appendix E of the Excelsior City Code of 
Ordinances Related to Residential Design Standards 

 Richards introduced the topic.  Richards stated that the Council wanted 
the Planning Commission to discuss the use of galvanized material before 

moving forward with the Residential designs standards.  Richards 
explained the proposed language options and the existing ordinance 
language.  Staff listed some options including allowing it outright or in 

certain districts or only in specific areas. 

 Wallace stated that he was leaning toward the restriction of galvanized 

material more than allowing it due the fact that it is not a traditional 
building material.  Wallace stated that option#4, which would allow 
galvanized only in commercial districts on properties abutting the  



Minutes 
Planning Commission Meeting 

September 4, 2013 
Page 3 of 7 
 

7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

(a) Proposed Ordinance to Amend Article 17, General Yard, Lot Area and 
Building Regulations of Appendix E of the Excelsior City Code of 

Ordinances Related to Residential Design Standards – (continued) 

 Hennepin County Regional Rail Authority right of way, made some sense.  

He stated that there has been some history of it along that corridor.  
Discussion followed.   

 Busch questioned if galvanized should be allowed in the residential 

zoning districts.  Hannah stated that he was aware of four or five 
residential buildings that already had some galvanized metal details.  

Discussion followed regarding existing conditions and finished versus 
unfinished metal.   

 Duyvejonck stated that she was not opposed to galvanized metal as an 

accent material.  Busch questioned if accent material could be defined so 
as to be consistently applied through ordinance.  Richards stated that 

one way would be to limit the amount of material on any one façade to a 
certain percentage.   

 Wilson indicated that the historic use of galvanized material was 
industrial use, not residential.  Wallace replied that currently the material 
was being used in contemporary residential design.  Discussion followed 

regarding painted metal lap siding, bright finish, and where it should be 
allowed.  Busch stated that any material needs to be complimentary to 

the neighborhood. 

 Wallace opined that the complimentary language should be eliminated 
and no galvanized should be allowed on Water Street. He felt that if it 

were to be allowed it should only be allowed in commercial areas along 
the railway excluding the B-5 zoning district.  Discussion followed 

regarding the existing properties along the HCRRA right of way and 
properties abutting Water Street. Wallace stated that the current city 
ordinances lean toward the protection of the historic brick downtown and 

the new development should blend in.  Richards agreed that the current 
ordinance and design standards promote a traditional brick style.   

 Discussion followed regarding the use of galvanized material in the 
residential district.  Duyvejonck stated that she wouldn’t want to allow 
galvanized materials in the residential areas, but she would be open to 

allowing it as a complimentary material in the commercial district.  
Richards stated that allowing a certain percentage of a façade would be a 

way this could be regulated through ordinance.   

 Discussion followed and the Commission determined that the use of 
galvanized material as a building material within the city would not be 

able to be decided at the meeting and further investigation and 
conversation would need to be done. 



Minutes 
Planning Commission Meeting 

September 4, 2013 
Page 4 of 7 
 

 7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

(a) Proposed Ordinance to Amend Article 17, General Yard, Lot Area and 
Building Regulations of Appendix E of the Excelsior City Code of 

Ordinances Related to Residential Design Standards – (continued) 

 Commissioner Wilson moved, Wallace seconded, to recommend the City 

Council approve the Residential Design Standards Ordinance Amendment 
as presented and request that the Council allow further discussion by the 
Planning Commission to explore the use of galvanized materials within 

the city.  Motion carried 4/1 with Hannah voting “nay.” 

(b) Formula Business Regulations (Franchises)  

Richards introduced the topic.  Richards explained the proposed changes 
to the ordinance language, including changes to the purpose and intent, 
the franchise business definition, the exception language, and limiting 

formula businesses to certain districts. 

Discussion followed regarding the proposed language and existing 

formula businesses. 

Duyvejonck asked what the next step would be in the development of 

the franchise business ordinance.  Richards stated that staff would clean 
up the proposed language and the Commission would need to decide if it 
was ready for a public hearing. 

Wallace used the redevelopment happening at 352 Third Street as an 
example and asked when and how this ordinance would go into effect.  

Specifically, if a developer, such as the one at 352 Third Street, were 
planning to have the franchise CrossFit as one of its tenants and the City 
passed language restricting franchise businesses before their space was 

ready, where does the City draw the line?  Discussion followed regarding 
when and how it would go into effect and how it would possibly affect 

existing projects. 

Wallace questioned if the Council wanted formula businesses at the 
corner of Oak Street and Water Street or if this area should also be 

regulated. Discussion followed on where the Commission would want the 
regulation to begin and end.  Wallace stated that he would include the B-

2 zoning district along Water Street.  Busch commented that there were 
currently three franchise businesses in the corner building and existing 
uses in the area. 

The Commission discussed the proposed exceptions.  Wilson stated that 
franchise businesses should not be allowed in the B-2 zoning district if 

they have frontage on Water Street.  Discussion followed regarding 
street frontage. 

Hannah asked what would be gained by restricting formula businesses 

within the B-2 zoning district.  Busch replied that this would further  



Minutes 
Planning Commission Meeting 

September 4, 2013 
Page 5 of 7 
 

7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

(b) Formula Business Regulations (Franchises) – (continued) 

protect that area from franchise businesses.  Discussion followed 

regarding including the B-2 district and future uses. 

Staunton commented that the question that may require some further 

investigation is when an existing use would be considered grandfathered 
in and when the use would change enough to be eliminated in the future.  
Staunton stated that he would look into this further.   

Duyvejonck called for a 5 minute break at 8:59 pm. 

Duyvejonck reconvened the meeting at 9:04 pm. 

Discussion followed regarding the proposed exception language. 

This agenda item was continued to the next meeting for further 
discussion. 

 (c) Parking Update 

i. Parking Counts 

Braaten provided the August parking count summary to the 
Commission. Discussion followed regarding the parking count 

summary. 

8. NEW BUSINESS  

(a)  Site Plan Review – Revised Plan – 352 Third Street, P.I.D. #34-117-

23-11-0001 and #34-117-23-11-0115 – Mike Seifert, Excelsior 3rd 
Street Station  

  Richards introduced the topic.  A revised site plan had been included in 
the packet and staff provided a newly revised site plan provided by the 
applicant at the meeting.  The newly revised site plan took into 

consideration an existing lease for a neighboring property owner and 
slightly changed the alignment of the path and the parking space 

configuration.  The existing MetCouncil park and ride would be moved 
over and it may be possible to save the existing trees with the new 
trail alignment.  The trail would be raised and curbed so no traffic 

could cross, which would greatly increase the safety for trail users.   

  Busch asked about the height of the proposed trail curb.  Staff 

responded that it would be a 6 inch curb. 

  Discussion followed regarding the number of proposed parking spaces 
on Mr. Seifert’s parcel and how the proposed improvements would be 

paid for.  

Wilson asked if the car encroachment/overhang would encroach onto 

the trail surface.  Seifert stated that this had already been designed  



Minutes 
Planning Commission Meeting 

September 4, 2013 
Page 6 of 7 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS  

(a)  Site Plan Review – Revised Plan – 352 Third Street, P.I.D. #34-117-
23-11-0001 and #34-117-23-11-0115 – Mike Seifert, Excelsior 3rd 

Street Station – (continued)  

for and the trail width allows for the parked cars to overhang the 

proposed curb. Seifert commented that the final design of the trail 
would be up to Three Rivers Park District.  He stated that his engineer 
had used the Three Rivers Park District trail standards when 

developing the plan.   

Wilson stated that the City Ordinance requires landscaping to be 

included in parking lot designs.  Richards replied that landscape islands 
and landscape requirements were traditionally only for new 
development not remodel of existing parking.  Mr. Seifert commented 

that he would probably put out some decorative planters.  Duyvejonck 
stated that this was not new construction so landscape islands are not 

required.  Busch stated that they could ask for planters even if the 
ordinance did not require them.   

Bob Bolles, 340 Water Street, asked the Commissioner to take the 
existing leases in the area seriously when discussing the trail 
realignment and proposed site improvements at 352 Third Street.  Mr. 

Bolles stated that if the Three Rivers Park District and the applicant did 
not want a small curve in the trail design then the plan could be 

modified to straighten it without encroaching on his leased area. 

Duyvejonck stated that the proposed curves in the newly revised trail 
alignment wouldn’t bother her due to the width of the proposed trail 

and the safety improvement for the parking and Water Street.  
Discussion followed regarding Mr.  Bolles leases from the Hennepin 

County Regional Railroad Authority (HCRRA). 

Richards informed the Commission that the new plan exceeded the   
67 parking spaces required based on the current proposed uses for the 

site.   

Discussion followed regarding landscaping, planters and conditions of 

approval. 

 Hannah asked if the intent was to keep the existing trees currently 
located along the park and ride. Mr. Seifert commented that it was 

their intention for the trees to remain. 

Wallace asked if the raised, curbed trail would have any trail accesses 

within the proposed area. Mr. Seifert said it was currently in discussion 
and the Three Rivers Park District would make the final determination. 

Commissioner Wallace moved, Hannah seconded to recommend 

approval of the conceptual design layout reflected in the site plan  



Minutes 
Planning Commission Meeting 

September 4, 2013 
Page 7 of 7 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS  

(a)  Site Plan Review – Revised Plan – 352 Third Street, P.I.D. #34-117-
23-11-0001 and #34-117-23-11-0115 – Mike Seifert, Excelsior 3rd 

Street Station – (continued) 

provided by the applicant with the conditions of approval stated in the 

staff report except for condition #2.  Motion carried 5/0. 

(b) Dates for Additional Work Session(s) 

None. 

9. COMMUNICATIONS & REPORTS 

(a) Next Planning Commission Meeting – Tuesday, October 8, 2013 

10. MISCELLANEOUS 

(a) Recent City Council Actions   

 Staunton informed the Commission of recent City Councils actions.  

Discussion followed regarding upcoming and existing projects. 

11. ADJOURNMENT 

 Commissioner Wilson moved, Busch seconded, to adjourn the meeting at 
9:57 PM.  Motion carried 5/0. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Lane L. Braaten 
City Planner 


